


  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 

  
  

 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
PIPELINE AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SAFETY ADMINISTRATION 

OFFICE OF PIPELINE SAFETY 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20590 

) 
In the Matter of ) 

) 
Equistar Chemicals, LP, ) CPF No. 4-2021-016-NOPV
  a subsidiary of LyondellBasell Industries N.V., ) 

) 
Respondent. ) 
__________________________________________) 

FINAL ORDER 

From March 2, 2020, through October 15, 2020, pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 60117, a representative 
of the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration (PHMSA), Office of Pipeline 
Safety (OPS), conducted an on-site pipeline safety inspection of the facilities and records of 
Equistar Chemicals, LP (Equistar or Respondent) in Texas and Louisiana, specifically, its 
35.3-mile propylene pipeline running from Orange, Texas to Lake Charles, Louisiana.  Equistar 
is a subsidiary of LyondellBasell Industries N.V. and operates approximately 1,500 miles of gas 
and hazardous liquid pipelines in Texas and Louisiana. 

As a result of the inspection, the Director, Southwest Region, OPS (Director), issued to 
Respondent, by letter dated March 19, 2021, a Notice of Probable Violation and Proposed 
Compliance Order (Notice).  In accordance with 49 C.F.R. § 190.207, the Notice proposed 
finding that Equistar had committed two violations of 49 C.F.R. Part 195 and proposed ordering 
Respondent to take certain measures to correct the alleged violations.  The Notice also included a 
warning item pursuant to 49 C.F.R. § 190.205, which required no further action, but warned the 
operator to correct the probable violation or face possible future enforcement action. 

Equistar responded to the Notice by letter dated April 8, 2021 (Response).  The company did not 
contest the allegations of violation and provided information concerning the corrective actions it 
planned to take with respect to portions of the pipeline at issue.  Respondent did not request a 
hearing and therefore has waived its right to one. 

FINDINGS OF VIOLATION 

In its Response, Equistar did not contest the allegations in the Notice that it violated 49 C.F.R. 
Part 195, as follows: 

Item 1: The Notice alleged that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R. § 195.452(b)(5), which states: 
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§ 195.452  Pipeline integrity management in high consequence areas. 
(a) . . . . 
(b) What program and practices must operators use to manage pipeline 

integrity? Each operator of a pipeline covered by this section must: 
(1) Develop a written integrity management program . . . . 
(5) Implement and follow the program. 

The Notice alleged that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R. § 195.452(b)(5) by failing to follow its 
Integrity Management Program (IMP) for identifying which pipeline segments could affect a 
high consequence area (HCA) as required by § 195.452(f)(1).1  Specifically, the Notice alleged 
that Equistar’s IMP required separately classifying non-pipe-like facilities as distinct assessable 
segments to be assessed using the facility assessment process.  During the inspection, Equistar 
was unable to provide any documentation showing that non-pipe-like facilities were separately 
considered from the segments with line pipe and pipe-like facilities.  

In its Response, Respondent did not contest this allegation of violation.  Accordingly, based 
upon a review of all of the evidence, I find that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R. § 195.452(b)(5) 
by failing to follow its IMP for identifying which pipeline segments could affect an HCA. 

Item 2: The Notice alleged that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R. § 195.452(b)(5), as quoted 
above. 

The Notice alleged that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R. § 195.452(b)(5) by failing to follow its 
IMP to determine the need for preventative and mitigative measures as required by 
§ 195.452(f)(6).2  Specifically, the Notice alleged that Equistar’s IMP required the identification 
of potential preventive and mitigative measures, but Equistar was unable to provide any evidence 
to demonstrate the operator’s actions to determine the need for potential preventative and 
mitigative measures in accordance with its IMP. 

Respondent did not contest this allegation of violation.  Accordingly, based upon a review of all 
of the evidence, I find that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R. § 195.452(b)(5) by failing to 
determine the need for preventative and mitigative measures on its pipeline. 

These findings of violation will be considered prior offenses in any subsequent enforcement 
action taken against Respondent. 

COMPLIANCE ORDER 

The Notice proposed a compliance order with respect to Items 1 and 2 in the Notice for 
violations of 49 C.F.R. § 195.452(b)(5).  

1  Section 195.452(f)(1) requires, among other things, that operators include in their IMP a process for identifying 
which pipeline segments could affect an HCA. 

2  Section 195.452(f)(6) requires, among other things, that operators include in their IMP the identification of 
preventive and mitigative measures to protect the HCA. See also § 195.452(i). 
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In its Response, Equistar stated that when PHMSA conducted its inspection, Equistar was the 
operator of the 8-inch, 6-inch, and 4-inch sections of the 35.3-mile propylene pipeline running 
from Orange, Texas to Lake Charles, Louisiana. Since the inspection, however, Equistar only 
operates the 6-inch and 4-inch sections.  Therefore, Respondent stated that it would take the 
corrective actions proposed in the Notice with respect to only the 6-inch and 4-inch sections. 

Having reviewed the evidence in the record, I find that on February 1, 2021, Respondent 
submitted a National Registry Notification on Form PHMSA F 1000.2 notifying PHMSA that it 
had ceased operatorship of the 8-inch propylene pipeline between Cameron County, Louisiana, 
and Orange, Texas, with operatorship having transferred to Enterprise Products Operating, LLC.  
Equistar noted further that it retained a 50 percent ownership of the line. 

Under 49 U.S.C. § 60118(a), each person “owning or operating a pipeline facility” is required to 
comply with the applicable safety standards established under chapter 601. In addition, 49 
C.F.R. § 195.2 specifies the term “operator” in the hazardous liquid pipeline safety regulations 
means “a person who owns or operates pipeline facilities.”  Since Respondent continues to own 
the 8-inch pipeline at issue in this matter, Respondent continues to have an obligation to ensure 
compliance of that pipeline with the applicable safety regulations.  Accordingly, Equistar must 
demonstrate to the Director compliance of the 8-inch, 6-inch, and 4-inch sections in a manner 
that satisfies the terms of the Compliance Order. 

Pursuant to the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 60118(b) and 49 C.F.R. § 190.217, Respondent is 
ordered to take the following actions to ensure compliance with the pipeline safety regulations: 

1. With respect to the violation of § 195.452(b)(5) (Item 1), Respondent must 
reclassify the pipeline segments on the Orange, Texas to Lake Charles, Louisiana 
pipeline adhering to IMPL-003 or the current company procedure.  Equistar must 
provide documentation to the Director demonstrating completion of this 
corrective action within 90 days of receipt of the Final Order. 

2. With respect to the violation of § 195.452(b)(5) (Item 2), Respondent must follow 
IMPL-007 or the current company procedure to determine the need for preventive 
and mitigative measures on the Orange, Texas to Lake Charles, Louisiana 
pipeline. Equistar must provide documentation to the Director demonstrating 
completion of this corrective action within 90 days of receipt of the Final Order. 

The Director may grant an extension of time to comply with any of the required items upon a 
written request timely submitted by the Respondent demonstrating good cause for an extension. 

PHMSA requests that Respondent maintain documentation of the safety improvement costs 
associated with fulfilling this Compliance Order and submit the total to the Director.  It is 
requested that these costs be reported in two categories: (1) total cost associated with 
preparation/revision of plans, procedures, studies and analyses; and (2) total cost associated with 
replacements, additions and other changes to pipeline infrastructure. 




